LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee: COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Date: THURSDAY, 30 JUNE 2016

Venue: MORECAMBE TOWN HALL

Time: 6.00 P.M.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Minutes
Minutes of meeting held on 26 May, 2016 (previously circulated).

3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman

4, Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).
Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.
In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.

5. Lancashire County Council’s Property Strategy 2016 (Pages 1 - 27)
Report of the Democratic Services Manager.

6. Request for Change of Budget & Performance Panel Meeting Date (Pages 28 - 29)
Report of the Chief Executive.

7. Appointments to Committees and Changes to Membership



ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Membership

Councillors Janet Hall (Chairman), Andrew Warriner (Vice-Chairman), Eileen Blamire,
Joan Jackson, Roger Mace, Abi Mills and John Reynolds

Substitute Membership

Councillors Tracy Brown, Susie Charles, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Terrie Metcalfe and
Susan Sykes

Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Tessa Mott, Democratic Services - 01524 582074 or email
tmott@lancaster.gov.uk.

Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies

Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582170, or alternatively email
democraticsupport@Ilancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on 21 June, 2016.


mailto:democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk

Page 1 Agenda Iltem 5

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Lancashire County Council’s Property Strategy 2016
30 June 2016

Report of the Democratic Services Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform Members of the a consultation being undertaken by Lancashire County Council on
its Property Strategy 2016 and to make arrangements to prepare a response, if the Committee

wishes to do so.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

) That the Committee considers whether to make a response on behalf of
the City Council to the County Council’s consultation on its Property
Strategy 2016 and;

2) That the Committee considers how to draft and agree the response
(subject to the decision in (1), above).

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Lancashire County Council is proposing some changes to how and where many
of the services it provides to communities to make them more affordable. The
County Council has launched a consultation which ends on Sunday 14 August.

1.2  The main changes the County Council intends to consult about are:
e To reduce the number of different buildings where services are
available
e To create a network of ‘neighbourhood centres’ through which it will
deliver services
e To consult on the location of children’s centres

A copy of the consultation proposals regarding ‘neighbourhood centres’ is
attached at Appendix A and Appendix B gives an overview of the consultation.

2.0 Proposal

2.1 Should the Committee be minded to make a response, the following points
have been flagged up by Officers:-

a) Polling Stations — of the 8 properties that Lancashire County Council is



Page 2

proposing to no longer deliver services from (see Appendix C for the list),
three are currently used as polling stations for elections and referenda.

They are

o Barton Road Young People’s Centre Barton Road, Lancaster
o Heysham Young People’s Centre, Middleton Way, Heysham
. Balmoral Children’s Centre, Balmoral Road, Morecambe

Additionally, Morecambe Library is currently used as a polling station.
The County Council’s proposals are to turn Morecambe Library into an
unmanned satellite library, which may affect its future use as a polling
station.

Depending on the future uses of the buildings, it may be possible to
continue using them as polling stations. If the buildings close or are no
longer accessible, then the Elections Manager will look at other suitable
venues in nearby locations.

b) The Chief Executive and Chief Officer (Resources) met with an officer
from the County Council earlier this year and suggested that Lancaster
Town Hall would be suitable location for the Lancaster Registry Office
and that both councils should review their assets in Morecambe in the
round rather than in isolation. Those suggestions could be raised again
in the consultation response, as no feedback has been received so far.

3.0 Conclusion

3.1 The Committee is asked, firstly whether it wishes to submit a response to the
County Council on behalf of the City Council.

3.2 If the Committee chooses to submit a response on behalf of the Council, it will
need to agree on a method for finalising the wording of the response to be
drafted after the meeting, either by delegating this to the Chairman; by
individual members commenting on the draft via email, or by some other
suitable arrangement to be determined by the Committee.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising directly from the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising at this stage. However, the comment in this
report regarding reviewing buildings in the round, rather than in isolation, could offer the
potential for both council’s to save money. The City Council currently receives £500 per annum
rent from the County Council for the use of Morecambe Town Hall for the Registration Office
— if they were to move to Morecambe Library then the budget would need to be updated to



Page 3

reflect this reduction in income.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:
No known resource implications for Human Resources

Information Services:
No known resource implications for Information Services

Property:
No known resource implications for Property Services

Open Spaces:
No known resource implications for Open Space

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer drafted this report in her capacity as Democratic Services Manager.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers

Lancashire County Council’s consultation on J| Telephone: 01524 582057

Property Strategy E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: N/A




rmm.ﬁ «?

m%wmws mns
@mx? .g Awmﬂ

%

Property Strategy

(Ne

ion Proposals

Consultat

—

ighbourhood Centres)

12 May 2016




Contents S
Introduction : ;-;_2
Future Opportunities i 3
Review Process i o - -3
Neighbourhood Centre_Model 4
; _Property Rev:ew R e ) 5
~ [ Property. data i L0 oo 5
i Counc;lloi" 'e'nd partner engagement 6
Operatlona! serwce guldance and prinmples o | 6
Library Serwce L 6
__5Reg|stratlon 'Se'rwce . 7
' ;-_;:;—-.:_:. Wellbelng Preventlon and Ear!y Help Service (WPEH) 8
«_ Children S Semces .(.l.-'.osterlng and Adoption, Social Care, 9
.. Special Educatl_o_nai Needs and Disability (SEND))
| -Youth Offending Team 11
« Adult Disability Day Services 11
¢ Older Peoples Daytime Support Service 12
o  Weifare Rights y 12
Expressions Of Interes__t__l_n Potentially Surplus Premises 13
| Consultation. And Decision Making 13
Annexes
1 Scoring and weighting methodology (Property Data)
2 Buildings proposed to deliver LCC services (Neighbourhood Centres)
3 Premises that are no longer required to deliver the Council's future
pattern of service delivery
Buildings subject to service decisions
Buildings brought into scope
Buildings currently delivering WPEH (children's centre) services and
those proposed fo the deliver WPEH (statutory children's centre) core
offer services
7 Property Strategy - Equality impact Assessment

Page5 .




Page 6

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

Property Strategy

Introduction

The Council is facing an unprecedented financial challenge. The Medium Term
Financial Strategy reported in the November 2015 forecast that the Council will have
a financial shortfall of £262 million in its revenue budget in 2020/21.

This is a combination of reducing resources as a result of the government's
extended programme of austerity at the same time as the Council is facing
significant increases in both the cost (for example as a result of inflation and the
national living wage) and demand for its services.

The revised position following the financial seftlement for 2016/17 is now a budget
gap of £200.507m by 2020/21. This revised gap takes into account the impact of the
settlement, new financial pressures and the savings decisions taken by the Full
Council in 2014/15, 2015/16 and 2016/17 regarding the future pattern of council
services.

A key element in the delivery of those services is the property portfolio from which
Lancashire’s residents can access those services and from which the Council's
employees can deliver outreach services into the community.

This report sets out proposals for the future configuration of the Council's property
portfolio. The proposals are designed to ensure that all Lancashire’s residents can
continue to be provided with high quality services. How individual Council services
are delivered varies considerably; many are delivered directly to people’s homes,
others required fixed infrastructure and others involve digita! delivery. The property
proposals are designed to provide a flexible response to the future patterns of
service delivery.

The proposals have been developed around the Neighbourhood Centre model set
out in the Council's Property Strategy approved by Cabinet in November 2015. The
proposals set out are the result of a review process that has consisted of three

components:

o Data analysis

¢ Dialogue with elected members and partners

o Consideration of how proposals align with service delivery strategies, in
particular; Libraries, Children’s Centres and the Young People's Service

Whilst the report sets out proposals based upon this review, it is now important that a
comprehensive consultation takes place with service users and the wider community
before a final set of proposal can be considered by Cabinet at its meeting in
September 2016.

An important part of our proposals is the creation of Neighbourhood Centres, which
will provide a range of services from multi-purpose premises around the county.
This strategy aims to provide the County Council with:




Page 7

Neighbourhood Centres)

Property Strateg — Consultation Proposals

« A smaller and more affordable property portfolio

* A move away from service specific premises to a corporately managed
property portfolio offering flexibility of use in order to ensure future efficiency
savings can be coordinated and realised

e A network of Neighbourhood Centres which provide community focussed
multi-functional buildings tailored to deliver high quality specific services within
identified areas

In some circumstances, we will seek to operate a service from the property of
another provider/partner as this may be preferable to existing County Council
properties in a given neighbourhood.

This report sets out:

o The process carried out in assessing the buildings within scope of the
Property Strategy review; and,

« A proposed list of properties which are .proposed for retention as
Neighbourhood Centres.

» A proposed list of premises that will no longer be required to deliver the
Council’s future pattern of service delivery.

¢ How interested groups can express their interest in potentially surplus
premises.

It is intended that the proposals set out in this report will form the basis of a 12 week
public consultation before final consideration and decision making at Cabinet in
September 2016.

Future Opportunities

This review is a first step in delivering a portfolio of premises fit for purpose in
accommodating county council services within communities. More detailed
consideration will be given to identify longer term provision of Neighbourhood
Centres in a small number of areas. This is due to a lack of existing suitable
accommodation solutions in the short term that may require the development of new
build solutions, in areas such as Burnley, Fleetwood and Preston.

Some buildings have been retained to ensure that there is a service delivery point
within a rural or isolated community. As a result, some Neighbourhood Centres may
not meet the aspiration of full utilisation and therefore may only require limited
opening hours. The Neighbourhood Centre mode! will continue to evolve and all
opportunities to maximise use of retained buildings will be considered.

There are early indications from some partners of a willingness to co-locate some of
their services within the Neighbourhood Centre model. These options can be further
explored throughout the consultation. Similarly, we will continue to explore use of
partner premises.

As public sector organisations develop closer collaboration in the delivery of property
focussed programmes such as One Public Estate, and economic development
programmes such as City Deal, there will be greater opportunity to identify suitable
options and enable better co-location of County Council and partner services.




Page 8

Proerty Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

Similarly, the drive to integrate health and care services and potential opportunities
through the development of the Lancashire and South Cumbria Sustainability and
Transformation Plan could lead to improved facilities that will accommodate health
and care services in the community.

Review Process

In making such a wide reaching change to how our services are configured in
buildings across the county, it is important that we take the time to properly consider
the available options, impact and opportunities for delivering differently and in
ensuring that service users, stakeholders and partners are given opportunity to
contribute and consider proposals.

In doing so, we have set out four stages to identifying the right portfolio of properties
that will serve as Neighbourhood Centres to ensure that they are established in the
right locations. This includes:

Stage One - the identification of a long-list of properties considered suitable for
public-facing service delivery. This list of properties, their location and the range of
county council services currently delivered from them was set out in the Property
Strategy published in November 2015.

Stage Two — property review: the development of a list of preferred properties
considered most suited for retention taking into account:

¢ data analysis
¢ dialogue with elected members and partners

« consideration of how proposals align with service delivery strategies e.g.
Libraries, and the Wellbeing, Prevention and Early Help (WPEH) Strategy

The LCC property data sets have been scored and weighted to give an indication of
the benefits each building offers from a property perspective. The methodology is
set out at Annex 1.

Stage Three — this report now sets out a full list of preferred properties considered
most suitable for retention as Neighbourhood Centres and points of service delivery.
This list forms the subject of the proposed public consultation and provides an
opportunity for further discussion with partners before reaching a final position.

Stage Four — taking account of the findings from the public consultation, this stage
will identify the most appropriate premises in which to develop Neighbourhood
Centres that will provide an accessible and flexible base for multi-service delivery
within communities. This will be subject to formal decision making by Cabinet to
agree a set of properties for retention at this time. By default, this will then identify
the range of properties available for alternate use or disposal.

Neighbourhood Centre Model

Neighbourhood Centres will provide a base for the provision of services currently
delivered through a range of single function buildings such as: children’s centres;
libraries: child and parenting support centres; and, adult day centres. They will be the
focus of public facing service delivery located in neighbourhoods across Lancashire.




Page 9

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

Nationally, public services are beginning to develop such an approach and are able
to demonstrate benefits both in terms of more efficient, locally based services and
opportunities to use their property holdings to encourage local regeneration and
investment.

As locally based multi-functional buildings, Neighbourhood Centres will be developed
to a flexible specification and will encompass a range of facilities appropriate to the
services {0 be delivered from them, for example:

flexible use of space, co-location and sharing of facilities
meeting rooms available to the community where appropriate
extended opening hours

confidential interview/consultation rooms

accessible network of touch-down provision for staff

In addition, operational services have identified some specific requirements for
buildings they deliver from. In many instances this is available within existing
accommodation but in some cases it will be necessary to provide specific facilities
such as:

clinical consultation rooms

facilities for on-site activities to support early childhood services
access to outdoor space for activities o be able to meet requirements
non-fixed library book shelving

library loan network access

library computer access/Wi-Fi

digital services

ceremony rooms where there is a sufficient business case

sufficient consultation rooms for locality

secure reception facilities

capacity to co-locate a range of children's services including both operational
and supervision staff

» private offices for clinical consultants

Property Review

The County Council's property portfolio excluding schools is a significant asset
comprising over 500 operational sites. From this total holding, 222 have been
identified as in scope for this review as they currently deliver public facing services.
Where the County Council's interest in a premises is only as a commissioner of
services delivered by others (e.g. Children's Centres delivered by schools or external
partners) these premises have not been considered as in scope of the property
review. These premises have, however, have been considered as potential locations
for delivery of appropriate services in respect of the future Wellbeing Prevention and
Early Help Service.

A range of information has been considered in determining the list of properties
identified as preferred for retention as Neighbourhood Centres and service delivery




Page 10

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

points. This includes the range of property data set out below that has been scored
to give an indication of the benefits of each LCC property in scope (Annex 1):

Property Data

accessibility of the building by public transport

Index of Multiple Deprivation/population density

finance (e.g. condition, running cost, energy efficiency (DEC) rating)
legal (e.g. tenure)

sufficiency (the size of the property)

suitability

* & & & ¢ 9

Councillor and Parther Engagement

Findings from the review have been 'sense checked' against local intelligence from
communities, councillors and partners to ensure that there is a good understanding
of the current role that county council buildings play locally and how the right ones
can be retained to deliver a more flexible range of services in neighbourhoods. The
information has been gained through:

¢ engagement with public sector partners to explore opportunities for co-
location and sharing of service delivery

¢ engagement with county councillors on how the Property Strategy has been
formulated and identification of where there may be opportunities for working
differently with partners and communities in local areas

There will be further opportunity for councillors, partners and communities to input to
proposals during the public consultation process.

Operational Service Guidance and Proposals

it is proposed that Neighbourhood Centres will accommodate a range of County
Council services. These proposals reflect the requirements of individual services in
meeting the community's needs as well as ensuring that the Council complies with
its statutory obligations and national guidance, where appropriate.

The proposals set out in Annex 2 identify the lead services that it is proposed will be
delivered from each of the proposed Neighbourhood Centres. The model will also
provide flexible accommodation for a range of other public facing services within
scope of this strategy.

LIBRARY SERVICE

National Guidance

The Council has a duty under the Libraries and Museums Act 1964 to provide a
"comprehensive and efficient library service for all persons desiring to make use
thereof'. The budget consultation on the future of the Library Service has informed
the basis of the Councils Library Service offer going forwards. Details of revisions to
the proposed County Library Service are set out in Appendix A.




Page 11

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) - Consultation Proposals

It is proposed that the following pattern of fixed premises provision will effectively
support delivery the Library Service offer. The fixed premises provision provides just
one part of the Library Service and it is considered that the full extent of the Library
Service provision proposed far exceeds a minimum level of sufficiency to meet the
needs of the population under the 1964 Act.

Proposal

The review has identified a set of preferred Neighbourhood Centre premises that will
provide for:

o 37 fixed library sites

e 7 satellite sites (self-service provision)

* supported by 6 mobile library unit 6 mobile library units (operating 68
routes and 792 stops that will be aligned to the fixed sites)

» home library service (delivering to over 1,000 customers)

¢ virtual library service, consisting of e-books, e-audiobocks and online
reference service

o provision of a schools and prisons library service will also continue
across the county

The configuration of premises proposed will result in a service that will provide the
following service reach:

o at least 95% of people living in densely populated areas (20 or more people
per hectare) will live within 2 miles of a proposed Neighbourhood Centre
library or satellite service.

 atleast 90% of people living in medium density populated areas (between 1.1
and 19.9 people per hectare) will live within 2.5 miles of a proposed
Neighbourhood Centre library or satellite service or 0.25 miles of a mobile
library stop.

» at least 70% of people living in sparsely populated areas (1 or fewer people
per hectare) will live within 3 miles of a proposed Neighbourhood Centre
library or satellite service or 0.25 miles of a mobile library stop.

REGISTRATION SERVICE

National Guidance

The Registration Service supports the Council in fuffilling its duties in the registration
of Births, Deaths and Marriages (Special Provisions) Act 1957, and the Borders,
Citizenship and immigration Act 2009.

» The core purpose of the Registration Service is to provide an efficient and
effective registration service in accordance with the Council's legal
responsibilities.

+ Some Registration Offices will be open Monday to Friday and at weekends
when required to deliver ceremonies and some will be part time with different
delivery patterns. The delivery patterns will be in line with demand in that
locality.




Page 12

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

Proposal

Within the scope of this review there are 13 buildings currently providing registration
services which includes a number of purpose built facilities. Consideration has been
given to re-providing the service within Neighbourhood Centres to consolidate
services, and to enable facilities which are currently provided solely for the delivery
of registration services to be utilised more widely. The proposed sites for delivery of
the Registration Service are:

Current L.ocation

Proposed Location

Acctington Registration Office (Accrington Library) No change
Burnley Registration Office No change
Chorley Registration Office No change

Clitheroe Registration Office (Pimlico Road JDO)

Clitheroe Library

Fieetwood Registration Office (Fleetwood Library)

No change

Lancaster Registrars

Lancaster Mill 14

Morecambe Registration Office (Morecambe Town Hall)

Morecambe Library

Nelson Registration Office (Neison Library) No change
Preston Registrars and Records Offices No change
Riverbank Children's Centre No change

Rawtenstall Registration Office Haslingden Library

Fylde Registration Office (Lytham Library) St Anne's Library

West Lancashire Registrars (West Lancashire Borough | No change
Council, Ormskirk)
Total 13 13

WELLBEING, PREVENTION AND EARLY HELP SERVICE (WPEH)

Proposals

The Wellbeing, Prevention and Early Help Service (WPEH) will align children's
centres, young people's provision, prevention and early help and Lancashire's
response to the national Troubled Families programme. The service will operate
through a revised budget of £17.2m.

The new service model is designed to ensure the Council meets requirements to
ensure effective support for 0-19+ year olds across Lancashire with a particular
focus on families in greatest need of support. it will also further align the ongoing re-
procurement of public health services, and consider the integration of other services
like health visiting and school nursing services, alongside other council services.




Page 13

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) - Consuitation Proposals

The proposed service offer for the WPEH service has been the subject of a separate
consultation in February and March 2016. Taking account of this, service specific
principles and revised details of the service structure can be found at Appendix B.

The proposal set out at Annex 2 of this report has made provision for the following
property requirements in respect of the WPEH service for 0 to 19+ year olds:

*» provide sufficient reach for the service across communities of greatest need
(Department for Education defined children's centres)
o over 92% of 0-11 year olds living in the most deprived areas of
Lancashire will live within 1.5 miles of a proposed Children's Centre
o flexible, multi-purpose buildings able to accommodate services that will meet
the diverse needs of children, young people and families (aged up to 25 years
where SEND)

* recognising that significant future provision will be on an outreach basis, to
ensure that access to fixed bases will be within reasonable walking distance,
consistent with current maximum

Proposals

In consideration of the service principles and feedback from the WPEH Service
Phase 1 consultation, it is proposed to deliver the service through 72 premises.
There is also likely to be some limited use of other Neighbourhood Centres and
partner venues for outreach purposes.

The table below sets out the number of properties which are proposed to
accommodate the WPEH service offer with detail the specific properties set out in
Annex 2.

WPEH Whole Service Offer Split Service Offer
0-11 years 17 properties 18 properties

12 - 19+ years 4 properlies 10 properties

0 - 19+ years 19 properties 4 properties

The buildings currently delivering WPEH (children's centre) services and those
proposed to the deliver WPEH (statutory children's centre) core offer services in the
future are listed at Appendix C Annex 6.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES (SOCIAL CARE, SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL
NEEDS AND DISABILITY (SEND), FOSTERING AND ADOPTION)

Guidance

The service is guided by several pieces of legislation including: the Children Act
1989; the Children and Families Act 2014; Care Planning, Placement and Care
Review Regulations 2013; and Statutory Adoption Guidance 2014. The services are
also subject to the Ofsted Inspection framework.

Principles




Page 14

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consuitation Proposals

The service is responsible for the assessment and management of risk, to safeguard
the welfare and outcomes for children and young people in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements. This is best supported through:

 buildings that are welcoming and accessible for children, young people and
their families.

e accommodation that supports a flexible response to fluctuating demand and
volumes of work. .

o geographic service delivery bases for teams to improve knowledge of
community needs and improve timeliness and quality of support.
where possible co-located with other children's services and agencies.

¢ adequate facilities to provide direct services to children young people and
families.

Proposals

Children's services are currently provided from predominantly office bases due to the
large number of Social Workers and support employees that need to be
accommodated.

The preference is for these employees to be located wherever possible in
Neighbourhood Centres. The size and configuration of the current property portfolio
is not currently capable of meeting this aspiration based upon the need to
accommodate area teams in the following locations;

- Burnley - Rossendale

- Pendle - Chorley/South Ribble
- Fleetwood ~ Preston

- Lancaster - Skelmersdale

At this stage we are proposing that the service operates from the Neighbourhood
Centres set out below and in Annex 2.

Proposed Location

Children's Scocial Care (Easden Clough)
The Zone
Children's Social Care (The Hawthorn's) Chotley

Children's Social Care (Sydney Street) and Oak Tree Children's | Fylde
Centre

Burnley

Children's Social Care {(Silver Birches) Hyndburn
Children's Social Care {Sefton Drive) Lancaster
Children's Social Care (Burniey Road) Colne

Children's Sociat Care (Ripon Street}

Children’s Social Care (St Luke's Centre) Preston

Stoneygate Children's Centre




Page 15

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

Sunshine Children's Centre

Children's Social Care (Newchurch Road) Rawtenstall

Skelmersdale Library West Lancashire

Children's Social Care (The Anchorage Fleetwood) and West View

Children's Centre Wyre

YOUTH OFFENDING TEAM

Guidance

The service model is derived from the legislative duties outlined in the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 and is a partnership arrangement established with the principal
aim to prevent offending by children and young people. Direction is provided through
the Lancashire Youth Justice Management Board and the service is provided
through a multi-disciplinary area based model including staff from statutory partners.

Proposal

The feasibility of accommodating the service for the Preston area within the Bus
Station complex is being considered. The service will be collocated with services for
young people (WPEH) where possible. Current and proposed locations are set out in
the table below:;

Current Location Proposed Location

Lancaster Youth Offending Team (Fraser House) White  Cross  Education
Centre (Mill 14)

Tharnton Youth Offending Team (Marsh Mill} The Zone in Wyre

Preston Youth Offending Team (Guildhall Street) Preston Bus Station

The Zone in West Lancashire No change

Chorley Youth Offending Team (Halliwell Street) Chorley Library

Accrington Youth Offending Team (Blake Street) The Zone in Bumley

The Zone in Burnley No change

ADULT DISABILITY DAY SERVICES

Guidance

The Care Act 2014 is used to determine the statutory elements of the Disability
(Adults) services where the Authority has the duty to assess and meet the assessed
care and support needs of an individual. There is discretion as to how those needs
are met.

Principles




Page 16

Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

The Adult Disability Day Services offers a range of services to adults with a disability.
This is a shared service for people with learning disabilities and people with physical
disabilities. For the purpose of this review, 12 Adult Disability Day Services that
currently provide day services are in scope.

Proposals

Under previous investment programmes, the Adult Disability Day Services are
largely provided in modern, fully equipped accommodation to ensure the needs of
adults with a range of needs can be met. Each facility provides support to service
users on a borough or wider basis rather than within the local neighbourhood
therefore has not been calculated within the indicative number of buildings required
for a neighbourhood.

it is proposed to maintain current Adult Disability Day Services provision within
existing accommodation, with the exception of Pendleton Brook in Ribble Valley and
Hollytrees in Chorley.

e Due to under occupancy and suitability it is proposed that the Pendleton
Brook (Ribble Valley) provision be combined with the Hyndburn Disability Day
Centre (Enfield).

o Alternative and more suitable provision for the service currently being
delivered from Hollytrees Disability Day Service building (Chorley) will be
identified and provided.

OLDER PEOPLE'S DAYTIME SUPPORT SERVICE

Guidance

The Care Act 2014 is used to determine the statutory elements of the Older People's
services where the Authority has the duty to assess and meet the assessed care and
support needs of an individual. There is discretion as to how those needs are met.

The Older People's Service provides daytime support. For the purpose of this
review, 12 Older People’'s Daytime Support Centres that currently provide day
services are in scope. It should be noted that where Day Centre provision is on the
same site as Residential Care, there is no change to the Residential Service.

Proposals

Due to the nature of the services provided from these buildings, they are largely fit
for purpose and well utilised which will result in little change to their use. However
the review has identified where there is under-utilised capacity and where there is
potential to co-locate services onto single sites, whilst maintaining appropriate and
separate service provision within facilities.

It is proposed to;

« establish a Neighbourhood Centre utilising the Milbanke Older People's Day
Centre which will also incorporate the Library service for the Kirkham area.

e Subject to a detailed building appraisal to determine the feasibility of
combining the Derby Street Daycare Centre (Ormskirk) with Mere Brook Day
Centre (Ormskirk) where support for people with enhanced dementia need is
provided




Page 17

Neighbourhood Centres) — Consultation Proposals

Property Strateg

WELFARE RIGHTS

Guidance

The Care Act 2014 places a duty to provide an information and advice service
however it is not prescriptive in how the duty is delivered. The service offers free,
impartiai and independent advice and support on a range of weifare benefits from
local bases around the County.

Proposal

The service will have a central administrative base in Preston and will be able to
utilise the flexible accommodation available across the portfolio of Neighbourhood
Centres according to community need.

Expressions Of Interest In Potentially Surplus Premises

As part of our initial consultation on the budget options it is clear there is a desire
amongst certain communities and groups to consider how they may take over the
responsibility for a surplus property.

This consultation provides a further opportunity for Expressions of Interest (EQls) to
be formally considered. On this occasion interested parties will have information
about the proposed configuration of the property portfolio and the council's service
proposals. They will also be able to consider the list of potentially surplus properties
listed in Annex 3.

If a group is interested in taking over a building, information is available on the
County Councils ‘have your say' website where they can complete the Expression of
Interest form. This will be a 'whole transfer' and so groups will be taking on the full
costs of running the building, and no financial support will be available from the
Council once the transfer is complete.

Once we have received an Expression of interest, we will provide an information
pack about the asset detailing, information on running costs, covenants or other legal
restrictions, and relevant service data.

The Council would want to be assured that the group is a suitable, constituted body
able to take on responsibility for the resource and will consider the merits of
transferring properties alongside the potential for sale of properties that will realise a
capital receipt.

Consultation And Decision Making

Subject to approval by Cabinet on 12 May 2016, a public consultation on the
proposals set out in this report will be held over 12 weeks in order to seek public and
partner views on the preferred Neighbourhqod Centre sites.

The consuitation will be hosted on the County Council's 'have your say' website.

Findings will be considered and reflected in the final report to Cabinet in September
2016 where decisions will be taken as to which properties will be retained for
development as Neighbourhood Centres.

The consultation document setting out proposals can be found at Appendix D




Changes to where we provide your servicepé@@aqlge County Council Page 1 of 6

Oppendnof

‘Lancashire

 County N
Council (%

[FROCRENO. { L} (-~

Home / Council / Getinvolved / Consultations / Changes to where we provide services /

Changes to where we provide your services

How services are affected?

Libraries

The council has recently consulted over plans to change its library service, including a
reduction in the number of locations this service is provided from. The results of the
consultation have been used to inform these proposals, in which we have identified
proposed Neighbourhood Centres with a total of:

» 37 fixed library sites
+ 7 satellite sites with self-service (not staffed)

In addition, there would be six mobile library units operating 68 routes and 792 stops

across the county. We will also continue to extend and our virtual library, which is
becoming an increasingly popular way to borrow books.

Take a ook at the map to see what we are proposing for libraries across Lancashire.

The proposals would mean that:

+ at least 95% of people living in densely populated areas would live within 2 miles
of a proposed Neighbourhood Centre library or satellite service.

« at [east 90% of people living in medium density populated areas would live within
2.5 miles of a proposed Neighbourhood Centre library or satellite service or 0.25

miles of a mobile library stop.
+ at least 70% of people living in sparsely populated areas would live within 3 miles

of a proposed Neighbourhood Centre library or satellite service or within 0.25
miles of a mohile library stop.

Wellbeing, Prevention and Early Help Services

hﬁp://www.lancashire. gov.uk/council/get-involved/consultations/changes-to-where-w... 19/05/2016



Changes to where we provide your services -Papghit@County Council Page 2 of 6

These services exist to'help make sure all children and young people are able to have
a good start in life. They include services for younger children and their families,
which are currently provided from a network of children's centres. They also include
young peof.)le's services fo provide young people with learning and recreational
activities, which are usually based in young people's centres and youth zones.

The strategy for these services has been the subject of a separate consuitation, the
results of which have been taken into account in considering where these services
should be provided from in future.

The proposals include that we will move from delivering at the current 63 designated
children's centre premises o 53 main locations, where we will deliver services for
younger children and their families. As part of changes to the Weillbeing, Prevention
and Early Help service, in some locations we will cater for wider age groups than we
have done previously. This would mean:

+ Wellbeing, Prevention and Early Help services would be located at a total of 72
sites. This would comprise 34 sites to support 0-11 year olds, 11 sites for 12-19
years (plus special educational needs up to 25 years) and 27 sites that will cover

the entire age range.
» Services are accommodated in a way that meets the diverse needs of children,
young people and their families, including outreach services where appropriate

Take a look at the map to see what we are proposing for children's centres and young
people's centres across Lancashire.

We know that over 92% of 0-11 year olds living in the most deprived areas of
Lancashire live within 1.5 miles of a proposed children's centre.

Registration Service

This provides services for people to register important life events including births,
marriages and deaths. |

There are currently 13 buildings which provide registration services, a number of
which are purpose built. The proposal is to keep eight of the services in the same
location and for the following to be located in different buildings alongside other
services:

+ Clitheroe register office on Pimlico Road is proposed to move to Clitheroe library

+ Lancaster register office is proposed to move to Whitecross Education Centre (Mill
14) in Lancaster -

+ Morecambe register office in the Town Hall is proposed to move to Morecambe
library

» Rawtenstall register office is proposed to move to Haslingden library

» Fylde registration office in Lytham library is proposed to move to St Anne's library

http://www lancashire.gov.uk/council/get-involved/consultations/changes-to-where-w... 19/05/2016




Changes to where we provide your servicepé@@agl@re County Council Page 3 of 6

Take a look at the map to see what we are proposing for registration services across
Lancashire.

Children's Services

Social workers provide support to children, young people and their families and will
often have meetings with them in a variety of buildings across the county. It is
proposed that this service operates from the following Neighbourhood Centres to
cover the different district locations:

« Burnley - Children's Social Care (Easden Clough) and The Zone

« Chorley - Children’s Social Care (The Hawthorn's)

» Fylde - Children's Social Care (Sydney Street) and Oak Tree Children's Centre

» Hyndburn - Children's Social Care (Silver Birches)

+ Lancaster - Children's Social Care (Sefton Drive)

+ Colne - Children's Social Care (Burnley Road)

« Preston - Children's Social Care (Ripon Street), Children's Social Care (St Luke's
Centre), Stoneygate Children's Centre and Sunshine Children's Centre

« Rawtenstall - Children's Social Care (Newchurch Road)

+ West Lancashire - Skelmersdale Library

+ Wyre - Children's Social Care (The Anchorage Fleetwood) and West View
Children's Centre

Take a look at the map to see what we are proposing for children's services across
Lancashire.

Youth Offending Team

These services are designed to prevent offending by children and young people. The
proposal is that the service will be co-located with services for young people where
possible and the list below outlines the proposed changes to service delivery from
current buildings:

» Lancaster Youth Offending Team (Fraser House) is proposed to move to White

Cross Education Centre (Mill 14)
» Thornton Youth Offending Team (Marsh Milf) is proposed to move to The Zone in

Wyre
« Preston Youth Offending Team (Guildha,] Street) is proposed to move to Preston

Bus Station A
+ Chorley Youth Offending Team (Halliwell Street) is proposed to move to Chorley

Library
» Accrington Youth Offending Team (Blake Street) is proposed to move to The Zone

in Burnley
+ The Youth Offending Team service currently delivered from the Zone in Burnley

and the Zone in West Lancashire will remain in those buildings

Take a look at the map to see what we are proposing for youth offending teams
across Lancashire.

http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/council/get-involved/consultations/changes-to-where-w... 1 9/05/2016



Changes to where we provide your services -Emh@é] County Council Page 4 of:6

Adult Disability Day Service

This involves a range of services for adults with a disability. It is a shared service for
people with learning disabilities and people with physical disabilities.

Chere are curZntly 12 Adult Disability Day services premises and it is proposed that
these continue, except for Pendleton Brook in Ribble Valley and Holly Trees in
Chorley:

+ Due to low usage and suitability issues, it is proposed that the services currently
available at Pendleton Brook will be relocated and combined with those at
Hyndburn Disability Day Centre (Enfield).

+ Alternative and more suitable provision for the service currently being delivered
from Holly Trees Disability Day Service building (Chorley) will be identified and
provided.

Take a look at the map to see what we are proposing for adult disability day services
across Lancashire.

Older People's Day Service

Our review has considered services at our 12 existing day centres for older people.
Please note that some of these are provided in the same buildings as residential care
services but the residential services are not affected by these proposals.

Most day centre services will continue to be provided where they are now, but there
are changes proposed as follows:

* A Neighbourhood Centre would be established at Milbanke Older People's Day
Centre, which will also incorporate the Library service for the Kirkham area.

» Subject to a detailed feasibility study, the Derby Street Day Care Centre in
Ormskirk would be combined with Mere Brook Day Centre in Ormskirk, where
support for people with enhanced dementia need is provided.

Take a look at the map to see what we are proposing for older people's day services
across Lancashire,

Welfare Rights

This service offers free, impartial and independent advice and support on a range of
welfare benefits from various bases around the county. It is proposed that the service
will have a central administrative base in Preston and be able to use the flexible
accommodation at Neighbourhood Centres to reach communities as effectively as
possible. The precise way in which the service is made available at different buildings
would vary over time, based on need.

http://www lancashire.gov.uk/council/get-involved/consultations/changes-to-where-w... 19/05/2016




Changes to where we provide your servicePggesa@tfre County Council Page 5 of 6

Take a ook at the map to see what we are proposing for welfare rights services
across Lancashire.

Have your say

The consultation runs from Wednesday 18 May until Sunday 14 August and we
want your views. You can also give your views via a hard copy questionnaire that are
available in libraries and children’s centres.

All feedback will be taken into consideration before final decisions are made in
September 2016.

Taking ownership of a council building and/or the
running of a service

We are aware from recent consultation activity that some groups have an interest in
the possibility of taking responsibility for buildings and/or taking over the running of a
service that may no longer be needed as a result of these proposals. We welcome
this interest where it would offer a benefit to the local community.

If you represent a group that may like to do this, we would ask you to submit an
expression of interest at the earliest opportunity. We will then send you an information
pack with more details about the building and/or service you are interested in.

Any group taking over a building from the council would not receive financial support
and the building would become that group's responsibility. The council therefore
needs to be assured that any interest is genuine and come from suitable, organised
groups able to take on such a responsibility.

Consultation
We are consulting on changes to where we provide your services until Sunday
14 August.
Take a look at the map
<Macro: (,)>

http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/council/get-involved/consultations/changes-to-where-w...  19/05/2016



Changes to where we provide your services -Pag@h28County Council Page 6 of%

© 2016, Lancashire County Council

About our site | Privacy policy

http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/council/get-involved/consultations/changes-to-where-w... 19/05/2016




property strategy Page 24

Click here to access a plain text version

Lancasé@ire

Cﬂ‘unt‘y AeNY,
Council @

B R S S T e = SE el

Property strategy consultation 2016

The district of Lancaster

a) Which of the following properties have you used in the last 3 years?
Please select as many as apply

The properties numbered 96-107 are the properties where Lancashire County Council is
proposing to no longer deliver services from.

a) Used in last 3 years

96. Balmoral Children's

Centre, Balmoral Road, ]
Morecambe, LA3 1HH*
Current services:

Wellbeing, Prevention and
Early Help Service
(designated children’s

centre)

97. Barton Road Young
People's Centre, Barton Road, ]
Lancaster, LA1 4ER

Current services:

Wellbeing, Prevention and

Early Help Service (Young

People's Service)

98. Bolton-le-Sands Library,

Main Road, Bolton-le-Sands, O
Carnforth, LA5 8DN

Current services: Library

Service 7
99. Carnforth Library,

Lancaster Road, Carnforth, ]

LAS5 9DZ

Current services: Library

100. Firbank Children’s Centre,

Keswick Road, Lancaster, LA1 i1

3HL

Current services:
Wellbeing, Prevention and

https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/interviewer.asp 10/06/2016



property strategy Page 25 Page 2 of 2

Early Help Service
(designated children's
centre)

101. Galgate Children's

Centre, Ellel St John CE 0
Primary School, Chapel Street,

Galgate, Lancaster, LA2 0JS

Current services:

Wellbeing, Prevention and

Early Help Service

(Children's Centre}

https:/fwww.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/interviewer.asp 10/06/2016




property strategy Page 26 Page 1 of 2

Click here to access a plain text version

I.ancas'hire

County -
Gauncll (’g

Property strategy consultation 2016

The district of Lancaster

a) Which of the following properties have you used in the last 3 years?
= Please select as many as apply

The properties numbered 96-107 are the properties where Lancashire County Council is
proposing to no longer deliver services from.

a) Used in last 3 years

102. Heysham Children's
Centre and Young People's
Centre, Middleton Way, M
Douglas Park, Heysham,
Morecambe, LA3 2LL
Current services:

Wellbeing, Prevention and

Early Help Service

(designated children’s

centre), Wellbeing,

Prevention and Early Help
Service (Young People's
Serwce)

103, Lencactar Reglstrat[on e e e
Office, 4 Queen Street, |
Lancaster, LA1 1RS

Current services:
Reglstratlon Serwce

””1 04. Morecambe Reglstratlon -
Office, Town Hall, Marine Road O
East, Morecambe, LA4 5AF

Current services:
Reglstratlon Serv:ce

105. Poulton Chlldren s

Centre, Clarke Street, O
Morecambe, LA4 5HR

Current services:

Wellbeing, Prevention and

Eariy Help Service

(designated children’s

centre)

https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/interviewer.asp - 10/06/2016



property strategy Page 27 Page 2 of 2

106. Ryelands Young People's O
Centre, Ryelands Primary
School, Torrisholme Reoad,
Lancaster, LA1 2RJ
Current services:

Wellbeing, Prevention and
Early Help Service {Young
Pecple’s Service)

107. Silverdale Library,
Emesgate Lane, Silverdale, O
Carnforth, LAS5 ORA

Current services: Library

Service

,.;._5%;( i

https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/interviewer.asp 10/06/2016



Adgenda Iltem 6 Page 28

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE

30" June 2016

Request for Change of Budget & Performance Panel
Meeting Date

Report of the Chief Executive

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To enable the Committee to consider the re-scheduling of the Budget and Performance

Panel from 3" August to 13" September 2016.

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATIONS

(2) That the Committee considers the re-scheduling of the Budget and
Performance Panel from Wednesday, 3" August 2016 to Tuesday, 13"
September 2016.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council Business Committee has delegated authority to agree the annual
timetable of City Council meetings. At its meeting of 5" November 2015 the
Committee confirmed the timetable of meetings.

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1  As part of its Terms of Reference the Budget and Performance Panel is
responsible for scrutinising the Council’s arrangements and performance in
relation to financial planning....and also to make recommendations as
appropriate....

2.2 When drafting the Work Programme for the Budget and Performance Panel,
which includes the timetabling of budget and performance monitoring quarterly
reporting for the current municipal year, it has become apparent that the
meeting set for 3" August 2016 will not provide for timely reporting information
for Quarter 1 to be submitted to the Panel. If the timetable remains as currently
set this will mean that financial and corporate performance monitoring
information for both Quarters 1 and 2 will have to be reported to the Panel’s
November 2016 meeting. This will not allow for the monitoring information to
be considered and scrutinised effectively, with any recommendations not being



Page 29

able to be reported to the appropriate Cabinet meeting.

2.3 In view of this information the Committee is requested to re-schedule the Panel
meeting to 13" September 2016.

3.0 Conclusion

3.1 The consideration of timetabling issues on behalf of full Council falls within the
terms of reference of this Committee.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications as a result of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:
None.

Information Services:
None.

Property:
None.

Open Spaces:
None.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Stephen Metcalfe
Telephone: 01524 582073
None. E-mail: sjmetcalfe@lancaster.gov.uk




	Agenda
	5 Lancashire County Council’s Property Strategy 2016
	Appendices.pdf

	6 Request for Change of Budget & Performance Panel Meeting Date

